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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

CARL MELCHER; MELCHER Case N016-cv-02440BAS(BGS
FAMILY LIMITED
PARTNERSHIR ORDER GRANTING

o DEFENDANT FRIED’'S MOTION
Plaintiff, TO DISMISS

V. [ECF No. 24
LANCE FRIED,

Defendant.

DC. 42

Plaintiffs Carl Melcher and Melcher Family Limited Partnership (“MFLP”)

bring this action against Defendant Lance Frikdtheir First Amended Complaint,

Plaintiffs allege counts for federal and state securities fraud, breach of fyddiig,

common law fraud, elder abuse, and rescission of contract. (First Am. Compl

(“FAC”), ECF No. 18.) Defendant moves to dismiss alf Plaintiff Melcher’s
individual claims pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 12(b)(1) an
(Motion to Dismiss (“Mot.”), ECF No. 24.) Plaintiffs oppos@&CF No. 25.)
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The Court finds this motion suitable for determination on the paperstsedh
and without oral argumentSeeFed. R. Civ. P. 78(b); Civ. L.R. 7.1(d)(Hor the
following reasons, the CouBRANTS Defendant’s motion to dismiss.

l. BACKGROUND !

Plaintiff Carl Melcher is approximately eighty years o[¢fAC § 12.) He is
the founder and one of the limited partners of Plaintiff MFLRd.)( MFLP is a
California limited partnership that Melcher formed in 1989, and it “is used by
for investments in companies.1d({ 11.)

This dispute arises from MFLP’s investment in FHGBorp. SeeFAC 1 1.)
At the time, Face Itwas a privately held social engagement and mobile cus|
care solution provider.”(Id.) On October 18, 2011, MFLP purchased 30.875¢
Face Its stock for $3 million, and Melcher became a board member of the con

(Id. 1 15.) Defendant Fried was at all relevant times the Chief Executive Offic

mi

[him]

omer
o of

pany.
er anc

Chairman of the Board of Face (id.  1.) MFLP was the sole outside investor in

the company; all of the remaining shareholders were founders of Fattk 1i.16.)

In 2013, Face It began having financial difficulties and was failing to meet its

revenue projections. (FAC § 18.) In an attempt to rectify Face It's financial status

Defendant asked Melcher for additional capital investments to keep the co
afloat. (d.) Melcher refused to do so until there was evidence that Face

making greater sales or incomed.)

mpan

It was

Around September2013, Face It was still struggling financially, gnd

Defendant reached out to Five9, a corporation interested in utilizing Fac
technology. (FAC 1 19.) The two companies discussed a potential sale of F3

Five9 for an estimated value of $10 millionld.(f 21.) Then, without disclosirn

L All facts are taken from thirst AmendedComplaint. Forthis motion the Court assume

all facts alleged in thpleadingare true. See, e.g.Cahill v. Liberty Mut. Ins. C9.80 F.3d 336,

337-38 (9th Cir. 1996).

-2 - 16cv2440

ce It's
ice It |

g

LS




© 00 N O o A~ W N PP

N NN N DNDNDNNNRRRRRRR R B PR
0w ~N o OO Bh W N EFP O O 0N O O N WDN PP O

these negotiations, Defendant allegedly proposed to Melcher that Face It rep
all of the shares in the company held by MFL(RL. 11 19, 2223.) On Septembeg
12,2013, MFLP did so for $1.5 million, haif the amounit originally paid for thes
shares.(Id. 1 24.)

The parties effectuated this transaction through a Redemption Agrg
executed between MFLP and Face It. (Redemption Agreement, Carlson De
Ex. A, ECF No. 242.)* Melcher signed the Redemption Agreement as the Pre:
of the “Melcher Family Corporation,” which is identified as the “General Partn
Melcher Family Limited Partnership.’(Id.) The day after MFLP and Face
executed the Redemption Agreement, Five9 allegedhesdi@ term sheet for ti
acquisition of Face It, and on October 18, 2013, the sale was finalized. {F28=
26.)

A few years later in 2016, Melcher became aware of this acquisition tin
and brought suit against DefenddntECF No. 1.) On July 10, 2017, Melcher 4
MFLP filed the First Amended Complaimatleging the following counts again
Defendant: (1) & (2) violations of Federal securities laws; (3) violations of Calif
securities laws; (4) fraud; (5) breach of fiduciary duty; (6) elder abuse(7ai

2 “Although generally the scope of review on a motion to dismiss for faitustate a clain
is limited to the Complaint, a court may consider evidence on which the ‘complaint “nece
relies” if: (1) the complaint refers to the document; (2) the document is centred aintiff's
claim; and (3) no party questions the authenticity of the copy attached to thg@)La{bjion."”
DanielsHall v. Nat'l Educ. Ass'n629 F.3d 992, 998 (9th Cir. 2010) (citation omittedaintiffs’
First Amended Complaint refers to the Redemption Agreement, the documenttre ¢
Plaintiffs’ claims, and no party questions the authenticity of the agreer(tee¢FAC 11 24, 37
55, 61-63;see alsd&=CF No. 71.) Therefore, the Court considers the Redemption Agreemg
adjudicating this motionSee Danielddall, 629 F.3d at 998.

3 Plaintiffs’ original complaint also brought claims against Five9, the successueiast
to Face It. The Court stayed these claims @uean arbitration provision in the Redempt
Agreement. (ECF No.-I at 8.) Ultimately, after Plaintiffs and Five9 reached a confide
settlement, the Court lifted the stayECF No. 11.) Plaintiffs then filed their First Amendg
Complaint, which removed Five9 but retained Lance Fried as the sole defentastdispute
(ECF No. 18.)
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rescission. Ifl.) Defendant now moves to dismmsly Melchets individual cause

of action?

. LEGAL STANDARD

A motion to dismiss under Rule 12(b)(6) of the Federal Rules of
Procedure “tests the legal sufficiency” of the claims asserted in the com
Navarro v. Block 250 F.3d 729, 732 (9th Cir. 2001Yhe court must accept :
factual allegations pled in the complaint as true and must construe them ang

all reasonable inferences from them in favor of the nonmoving p&shill v.

Liberty Mut. Ins. Cq 80 F.3d 336, 3388 (9th Cir. 1996).To avoid a Rule 12(b)(6

dismissal, a complaint need not contain detailed factual allegations; rather,
plead “enough facts to state a claim to relief that is plausible on its f&e#l.’Atl.
Corp. v. Twombly550 U.S. 544, 570 (2007)A claim has facial plausibility whe
the plaintiff pleads factual content that allows the court to draw the reas

inference that the defendant is liable for the misconduct allegeshtroft v. Igbal

556 U.S. 662, 678 (2009) (citingvombly 550 U.S. at 556)."Where a complaint

pleads facts that are ‘merely consistent with’ a defendant’s liability, it ‘stops sk
the line between possibility and plausibility of entitlement to reliefd” (quoting
Twombly 550 U.S. at 557).

“[A] plaintiff’'s obligation to provide the ‘grounds’ of his ‘entitle[ment]
relief’ requires more than labels and conclusions, and a formulaic recitation
elements of a cause of action will not ddivombly 550 U.S. at 555 (alteration
original) (quotingPapasan v. Allain478 U.S. 265, 286 (1986)A court need ng

4 Although Defendant moves to dismiss pursuant to both Rule 12(b)(1) and 12(b)
does not differentiate between the two dismissal standahils motion. Because Rule 12(b)(6)
better suited to resolve Defendant’s arguments, the Court applies onlyatidarst See, e.g.
Lindsey v. Starwood Hotels & Resorts Worldwide, 1409 F. App’'x 77, 78 (9th Cir. 201
(“Whether a plaintiff possesses legally enforceable rights under eacoid a question on th
merits rather than a question of constitutional standBgch a plaintiff fails to state a claim
which relief can be granted.).
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accept fegal conclusions” as trueqgbal, 556 U.S. at 678Despite the deference t
court must pay to the plaintiff's allegations, it is not proper for the court to ag
that “the [plaintiff] can prove facts that it has not alleged or that the defendast
violated the . . . law[] in ways that have not been allegégsoc. Gen. Contracto
of Cal., Inc. v. Cal. State Council of CarpentetS9 U.S. 519, 526 (1983).

As a general rule, a court freely grants leave to amend a complaint tf
been dismissedr-ed. R. Civ. P. 15(agchreiber Distrib.Co. v. Serswell Furniture
Co., 806 F.2d 1393, 1401 (9th Cir. 1986jowever, leave to amend may be der
when “the court determines that the allegation of other facts consistent w
challenged pleading could not possibly cure the deficienSghreiber Distrib. Cq
806 F.2d at 1401 (citinBonanno v. Thoma809 F.2d 320, 322 (9th Cir. 1962)).

[ll.  DISCUSSION

Defendant challenges Melcher’'s ability to bring individual claims
violations of federal securities laws, violations of California securities laws, 1
breach of fiduciary duty, financial elder abuse, and rescission. The Court will 8

these claims in turn.

A. Federal Securities Claims
1.  Securities Exchange AcBection 10(b) andSEC Rule 10b5

In Count I, both Melcher and MFLP allege that Defendant violated Sq
10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and SEC Rul&1QBAC T129-32.)
Defendant argues that “the only party with standing to bring a claim is MFL
entity which bought and then sold the stock,” and moves to dismiss Melchg
plaintiff. (Mot. 4:5-7.)

The plaintiffs who may bring a private damages action pursuantdoo8
10(b) and Rule 105 are “limited to actual purchasers and sellers of securitiiaé
Chip Stamps v. Manor Drug Store1 U.S. 723, 731 (1975) (quotiBgnbaum v
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Newport Steel Corp.193 F.2d 461, 463 (2nd Cir. 1952)). This purchasder
notion is frequently interpreted as a “standing” requiremé&ng., Mount Clemen
Indus., Inc. v. Bell464 F.2d 339, 343 (9th Cir. 1972ge alsdzason v. Generd
Motors Acceptance Corp490 F.2d 654, 657 (7th Cir. 1973).

Here, Plaintiffs argue Melchés a proper plaintiff because he “is the gen
partner of MFLP” and “signed the September 9, 2013, Redemption Agre
between MFLP and Face It.[Opp’'n 3:27428.) The First Amended Complai
alleges Melcher “is the founder and one of the limitedneastof MFLP and . .is
the individual responsible for negotiating the purchase and sale by MFLP of
stock.” (FAC 1 12))

The Court is not convinced that Melcher is a proper plairififie Redemptio
Agreement demonstrates that the sale ofksticissue was between Face It

MFLP—not Melcher. Moreover, according to the Redemption Agreemse

signature page, the “Melcher Family Corporation” is the general partner of M

not Melcher. (Id.) Regardless, even Melcher is the general partner MFLP, the
only parties to the Redemption Agreement are MFLP and Face It. Melcher

bring in his individual capacity “claims belonging to the partnershieélindsey

409 F. App'x at 78 (citing Cal. Corp. Code 8816201, 16203, 16401(g)).

Consequently, because Melcher is nopwchaser orseller of the implicate

securities, the Court will dismiss Melcher’'s Count | with leave to am&s& Blue

Chip Stamps421 U.S. at 731.
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2. Securities Exchange Act Section 20(a) and Rule 18b

Plaintiffs’ second claim invokes Section 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act,
which “provides for derivative liability of those who ‘control’ others found ta be
primarily liable under the 1934 Act.In re Ramp Networks, Inc. Se201 F. Supg.
2d 1051, 1063 (N.DCal. 2002) (citing 15 U.S.C. 8§ 78(t)(a)). This claim is derivdtive
of Plaintiffs’ first claim for violation of Section 10(b) and similarly fails unless g¢ach
Plaintiff can state a claim under that sectiSee Heliotrope Gen., Inc. v. Ford Motor
Co, 189 F.3d 971, 978 (9th Cir. 1999) (“To be liable under section 20(a) the
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defendants must be liable under another section of the Exchahfe #ee also In
re Ramp Networks, Inc. Se201 F. Supp. 2d at 106&nding that the pleading

requirements for violations of Sections 20(a) and 10(b) of the 1934 Act are the|same

Given that Melcher has not stated a claim under Section 10(b), his derjvative

countunder Section 20(alsofails to state a plausible claindence, the Court wi

dismiss Melcher’'s Count With leave to amend.

B. California Corporations Code 8825401, 25402, and 25501

In Count Ill, Plaintiffs allege that Defendant violated California Corporations

Code 88 25401, 25402, and 25501. (FAC %895 Again, Defendant challenges
Melcher’s ability to bring thig€ountin an individual capacity. (Mot. 5:320.)

California Corporatioa Code 8§ 25401 prohibits misrepresentatiang
connection with the purchase or saleseturities, and 8§ 25402 forbidissider
trading. The third provision Plaintiffs’ pleading identifies, § 255@ktablishes pa

private remedy for damages and rescission based on § 25401 lialiéty.Cal

Amplified Inc. v. RLI Ins. Go94 Cal. App. 4th 103, 109 (2001). These state

provisions are patterned after federal securities IeéBeePeople v. Scho¢gl 52 Cal
App. 3d 379, 387 (1984%ee alsdMueller v. San Diego Entm’t Partners, LLNo.
16-cv-2997-GPC(NLS), 2017 WL 3387732, at *9 (S.D. Cal. Aug. 7, 2017).

-7 - 16cv2440
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Because the Courls concluded above that Melcher does not have the &
to bring federal securities fraud claims on behalf of himself, so too does he I3
ability to bring comparative claims for California securities fra&ede Mausery \
Marketbyte LLC No. 12cv-2461:JM(NLS), 2013 WL 12072832, at *12 (S.D. C
Jan. 4, 2013) (applying the same analysis to the plaintiff's federal and @il
securities claims because the elements of federal securities fraud are sif
California securities fraud)Further,although Melcher invokes California’s insic
trading provision, he is not a purchaser or seller of stock who can show he h
“harmed by virtue of insider trading” andould therefore hae “a right of action
against violators of section 25402SeeFriese v. Superior Courtt34 Cal. App. 4tl
693, 697 (2005). Thus, the Court will dismiss Melcher’s individual Count IlI

leave to amend.

C. Financial Elder Abuse

Melcher brings a claim for financialder abuse under California’s Eld
Abuse Act, California Welfare and Institutions Code 8§ 15610.B&C(Y 5658.)
Defendant argues this claim must be dismissed because Melcher “did not pe
own or sell the stock” and an “elder abuse action cannatien the elder’s intere
is held in a supposedly injured entity(Mot. 7:11+15.)

An elder becomes the victim of financial abuse when a person or
“[t] akes, secretes, appropriates, obtains, or retains . . . property oéan.eldbr g
wrongful use or with intent to defraud, or both.” Cal. Welf. & Inst. Cod
15610.30(a)(1). An elder must be an individual residing in California who is a
65 years of age or olderld. § 15610.27. For purposes of § 15610.30, an indivi

® Plaintiffs’ pleading may be interpreted as providihgt both Melcher and MFLP ai
seeking to bring claims for elder abuséseeFAC 1Y 53, 57.) MFLP, however, is a limite
partnership—not an individual.Thus, it is not'any person residing in this state, 65 years of a(
older” SeeCal. Welf. & Inst. Code 8 15610.2Accordingly, to the extent that Plaintiffs’ pleadi
raises an elder abuse claim on behalf of MFLP, this claim is dismissed wiitipeej
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“takes, secretes, appropriates, obtains, or retains . . . property when an eldg
deprived of ay property right, including by means of an agreementd. §
15610.30(c).A deprivation under this provision does not require “theatlitaking

by one person ahe property of another,” nor does it necessitate the satisfaction of

“some kind of privity requirement.’'Mahan v. Charles W. Chan In&gency, Inc.
14 Cal. App. 5th 841, 8662 (2017)

Defendant’s challenge to Melcher’s claim focuses on whether Meltas
“deprived of ay property right,”seeCal. Welf. & Inst. Code § 15610.30(c), wh
MFLP sold the “Face It stock back to Face It for $1.5 milliosggFAC | 55).
Typically, “individual partners may not sue for damages to the partnership g
interests in the partnership.SeeO’Flaherty v. Belgum115 Cal. App. 4th 104+
1062 (2004) Because MFLP owned the stock that Defendant allegedly approp
Defendant believes Melcher cannot bring an elder abuse claim based
deprivation of this mperty. (SeeMot. 7:11+15.) See alsdsonoma Foods, Inc.
Sonoma Cheese Factory, LL&34 F. Supp. 2d 1009, 1023 (N.D. Cal. 2007).

The California Court of Appeal considered a similar argumemahan v.
Charles W. Chan Insurance Agency, Jriel Cal. App. 5th 841, 862 (2017)here,
the plaintiff elders—the Mahans-“purchased two life insurance policies, nam

their children as beneficiaries.ld. at 846. They placed these policies intg

revocable living trust and “made enough money available tdih&t, in advance

so that it would be seHBustaining ‘for many years to come,” with no need

additional cash infusions from them for ongoing premium costls.More than twg

decades later, when the Mahans were in cognitive decline, the defamsiaanhce

agents allegedly engaged in a manipulative scheme to surrender one of the &
insurance policies and replace the second ttheThis scheme resulted in $100,(
in commissions to the defendants, along with drastically higher life anee
premium costs for the truskd. The trust and the Mahans brought claims agains

defendants, and the defendants demurred to the Mahans’ financial elder abu
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of action. Id. at 847. The defendants argued they did not deprive the Mahans ¢
property under the Elder Abuse Act because the trust owned the life ins
policies at issueld. The trial court agreed and sustained the demurtdrs.

The California Court of Appeal rexsed. Mahan 14 Cal. App. 5th at 869t
concluded the Mahans sufficiently alleged they were deprived of their prayg
several groundsld. a 862-65. For example, the court noted the Mahans allg
that—due to the defendantsonduct—they*had toreach into their pockets and S
assets to provide more cash to the Children’s Trust than they ever planned t{
cover the premium costs of the more expensive replacement insurance coigr,
at 864. The Court of Appeal reasoned that this altegastated a deprivation
property because the Mahans alleged that “by manipulation and use of the Ch
Trust as an instrument, the [defendants] managed to separate the Mahans fr
money.” Id.

Here, he First Amended Complaint does not plausibly state that Def
deprived Melcher of his propertyThe pleading commingles the ownership of
shares of Face It, alleging simply that Plaintdfsned the Face It Stock and t
Defendant “acquired the property of Melcher, which was heMARhP.” (FAC 11
16, 19, 24, 56.) Plaintiffs therefore alleg Defendant “deprived Melcher of h
personal property.{ld. 1 58.) But the Redemption Agreement demonstrates M
owned the shares, not Melcheé8ee Mahanl4 Cal. App. 5th at 855 (notirtgatif
the plaintiffshadadopted a theory that one of the elders “was the ‘real owner’
[life insurance policy]'in the trustthat approach would have been “in many resg
. . . Inconsistent with the documentary evidence attached to” the elderplaint).
And, although the California Court of Appeal adopted an expansive viq
“property of an elder” iMahan Plaintiffs’ pleading lacks comparable allegatitm
sustain an analogous theory of liabilittyor example, the pleading has no allegat
regarding the ownership struceé of MFLP,how MFLP was capitalizedyhether

MFLP is used for estate planning purposes, and whether Melcher has been f
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invest additional capital into the entity due to Defendant’s alleged condBex.

Mahan 14 Cal. App. 5th at 855The First Amendé Complaint simply allegethat
Melcher is“one of the limited partners of MFLP.” (FAC  12.)

In their opposition, Plaintiffs request leave to amend to “clarify that Me
is the general partner of MFLP, MFLP was created for estate planning mjraog
Melcher has personally funded the entirety of MFLP.(Opp'n 7:9-14.)
Accordingly, the Court will dismiss this claim with leave to amenkhe Court
cautions Plaintiffs, however, that they need to provide sufficient detallow the
Court to detrmine whether Defendant’s purported condplztusibly deprived

Melcher ofanypropertyright.

D. Breach of Fiduciary Duty and Fraud

Both Melcher and MFLP allege breach of fiduciary duty and fraud ag
Defendant. (FAC 11 462.) Defendant seeks dismissal of Melcher’s individ
claims on the same rationale as above: Melcher did not personally own the s
Face It. In Mahan the elder plaintiffs also brought these two clairhd.Cal. App
5th at 868.After the California Cart of Appeal concluded the Mahans success
alleged that the defendants deprived them of property, the moted that “[t]he
analysis of injury is, in substance, the same” for the elders’ breach of fiduciar
and fraud claimsld.

Here, theanalysis is also the sameThus,because the Court has alreg
concluded that Melcher has not sufficiently alleged he was deprivad pfoperty
to support his financial elder abuse claim, the Court will also dismiss thes
claims with leave to amendbsee Mahanl4 Cal. App. 5th at 868.
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E. Rescission of Contract

Last, Plaintiffs bring a claim for rescission of the Redemption Agreel
(FAC 1160-63.) Defendant moves to dismiss Melcher’s rescission claim o
same basis as his other claims. (Mot—3®)

The Court agrees that Melcher’s rescission claim is subject to dis
because he was not a party to the Redemption AgreerfRarther, the Court note
that rescission under California law is not a claim, but a remedy,. Reyes v. Wel
Fargo Bank, N.A.No. G10-01667 JCS, 2011 WL 30759, at *17 (N.D. Cal. Jat

2011) (agreeing that in California “there is no standalone claim for | .

rescission”); see alsoNakash v. Superior Coyrtl96 Cal. App. 3d 59, 7
(1987)(“Rescission is not aause of action; it is a remedy.”Thus, the Court wil

dismiss Melcher’s Count VIl of the First Amended Complaint.

V. CONCLUSION

In light of the foregoing, the CouBRANTS Defendant’s motion to dismiss

mnent.

n the

missal
hS

S

n. 3,

0
|

Melcher’s individual claims.Melcher is grantedeave to amend his first, second,

third, fourth, fifth, and six claimsFurther, provided Melcher can state a cogniz
and appropriate underlying claim, he may pursue rescission as a remed
amended pleadindf Plaintiffs choose to file a Secoddnended Complaint, it mu
be filed no later thadune 12, 2018

IT1S SO ORDERED.

DATED: May 29, 2018 (yidina  Faphaals
Hon. Cynthia Bashant
United States District Judge
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